
 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MEETING AGENDA  

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 10, 2019 
 

Regular Meeting - 6:30 PM 
 

City Hall – Beryl P. Robinson, Jr. Conference Room 
317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA  95959 

 
MISSION STATEMENT  

The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town  
character and historical architecture while providing quality public services for our 

 current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 
 
 

David Parker, Mayor 
Duane Strawser, Council Member   Reinette Senum, Vice Mayor 

      Erin Minett, Council Member   Valerie Moberg, Council Member 
 

The City Council welcomes you to its meetings which are scheduled at 6:30 PM on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of each 
month.  Your interest is encouraged and appreciated.  This meeting is recorded on DVD and is televised on local public 
television Channel 17.  Other special accommodations may be requested to the City Clerk 72 hours in advance of the 
meeting.  Please turn off all cell phones or similar devices.  Action may be taken on any agenda item.  Agenda notices are 
available at City Hall.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the agenda 
packet are available for public inspection in the City Hall at 317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA during normal business 
hours. 
 
ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON ANY ITEM ON THIS 
AGENDA: After receiving recognition from the Mayor, give your name and address, and then your comments or questions. 
Please direct your remarks to the Councilmembers. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity to speak, please 
limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. All citizens will be afforded an opportunity to speak, consistent 
with their Constitutional rights. Time limits shall be at the Mayor's discretion. 
IF YOU CHALLENGE the Council's decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those issues you or 
someone else raised at the meeting or Public Hearing described on this agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the 
City Council at, or prior to, the meeting or Public Hearing. 
 
CLOSED SESSION:  None 
 
Under Government Code Section 54950 members of the public are entitled to comment on the closed session agenda 
before the Council goes into closed session. 
 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:  Mayor Parker, Vice Mayor Senum, Moberg, Minett & Strawser  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
PROCLAMATIONS:   
 
PRESENTATIONS:   
 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
 



Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public are entitled to address the City 
Council concerning any item within the Nevada City Council’s subject matter jurisdiction. 
Comments on items NOT ON THE AGENDA are welcome at this time.  Normally, public 
comments are limited to no more than three minutes each.  Except for certain specific 
exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking action on any item not 
appearing on the posted agenda. 

 
2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 
3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City Council 
and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed.  There will be no separate discussion of 
these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the 
Council, City staff or the public request specific items to be removed from the Consent 
Calendar for separate discussion and action. 

 
A. Subject: Accounts Payable Activity Report 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

B. Subject: Side Letter No. 1 to the Nevada City Miscellaneous Employee’s Association 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) – Treatment Plant Work Schedule and Related 
Issues 
Recommendation: Review and approve Side Letter No. 1 to the City of Nevada City 
Miscellaneous Employee’s Association Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) defining 
Treatment Plant Work schedules and related issues. 
 

C. Subject: Award of Contract for Seaman’s Lodge Floor Refinish at Pioneer Park 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2019-XX awarding a contract to Guy & Co. 
Woodfloors in the amount of $4,660.00 plus $700.00 in contingencies for Seaman’s Lodge 
floor refinish at Pioneer Park in Nevada City and authorize the Mayor to sign. 

 
D. Subject: Award of Contract for 211 Broad St. (National Hotel) Sidewalk in Nevada City 

Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2019-XX awarding a contract to Central Valley 
Engineering Asphalt Inc. in the amount of $96,780 plus $10,000 in contingencies for 211 
Broad St. (National Hotel) Sidewalk and authorize the Mayor to sign. 

 
E. Subject: 4th Quarter 2018 Sales Tax Update  

 Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

4. APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 
 
A. City Council Meeting – March 27, 2019 

 
5. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 

 
A. Subject: Nevada City Residential Chipping Pilot Program 

Recommendation: Approve a Nevada City Residential Chipping Pilot Program to be 
evaluated July 2019. 
 



6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

7. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject: Nevada City Traffic Calming Program  
Recommendation: Review and approve the Policy for the Implementation of Traffic 
Calming Measures in the City of Nevada City. 
 

B. Subject: Sugarloaf Trail Progress Update  
Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Subject: Amended Application: Elevation 2477 – Cannabis Dispensary Business, Amended 
to Add a Delivery Component at 569 Searls Avenue, Suite C 
Recommendation: Approve the amended application as presented to authorize a delivery 
component for Elevation 2477, as outlined in their amendment proposal, subject to the 
previously approved Conditions of Approval as amended, attached, making the findings  
a & b. 
 

B. Subject: Citywide Projects, Capital and Programs Listing Potentially Eligible for Grant 
Funding 
Recommendation: Provide staff direction for next steps on how to proceed. 
 

9. CORRESPONDENCE: 
  

10.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

11.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 

12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Certification of Posting of Agenda 
I, Loree’ McCay, Administrative Services Manager/Deputy City Clerk for the City of Nevada City, declare that 
the foregoing agenda for the April 10th, 2019 Regular Meeting of the Nevada City City Council was posted April 
5th,  2019 at the entrance of City Hall. The agenda is also posted on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
Signed April 5th, 2019, at Nevada City, California 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Loree’ McCay, Administrative Services Manager/Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
City Council 

Long Range Calendar 
 
April 10, 2019  Regular Council Meeting 
April 24, 2019  Regular Council Meeting 
May 8, 2019  Regular Council Meeting 
May 22, 2019  Regular Council Meeting 
May 27, 2019  Memorial Day Observed 
June 12, 2019  Regular Council Meeting 
June 26, 2019  Regular Council Meeting 
 
NOTE:  This list is for planning purposes; items may shift depending on timing and capacity of a meeting. 
 
NOTICE:  As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to 
remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making 
personal, impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 
abusive while addressing said Council and to enforce the rules of the Council. 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
April 10, 2019        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:   Accounts Payable Activity Report – March 2019 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file.  
 
CONTACT:  Loree’ McCay, Administrative Services Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
The attached Accounts Payable Activity Report includes all the cash disbursements associated 
with the City-Wide Expenditures for the month of March 2019. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:   Not applicable.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Varies Monthly.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Accounts Payable Activity Report – March 2019 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


















REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City, CA  95959 
April 10, 2019                  www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: Side Letter No. 1 to the Nevada City Miscellaneous Employee’s Association 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) – Treatment Plant Work Schedule and Related 
Issues 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and approve Side Letter No. 1 to the City of Nevada City 
Miscellaneous Employee’s Association Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) defining 
Treatment Plant Work schedules and related issues. 
 
CONTACT:  Loree’ McCay, Administrative Services Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
The current MOU with the City of Nevada City Miscellaneous Employee’s Association covers 
the period of July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.  Due to the need of 24/7/365 coverage for the 
treatment plants, the need arose for the City to define alternative work schedules that will 
provide adequate staffing coverage for projects, allow for standby coverage 7 days a week, 
and outline and clarify holiday scheduling and pay.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  There is no expected fiscal impact.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Side Letter No. 1 to the City of Nevada City Miscellaneous Employee’s Association 

MOU 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY  
SIDE LETTER NO. 1 TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 
TO:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Bill Sander, Wastewater/ Water Operator II 

 
SUBJECT:   Amendment No. 1 to the Nevada City Miscellaneous Employee’s Association 

Memorandum of Understanding dated July1, 2018 through June 30th, 2021. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:   April 20, 2019 
 
The Department and City have agreed to adopt the following policy pertaining to the Employees working 
in the Water/Wastewater Treatment Plants as follows:  
 
TREATMENT PLANT WORK SCHEDULE AND RELATED ISSUES 
 

1. Applicability: 
The following applies to Water Treatment Plant and Wastewater Treatment Plant staff who are regularly 
and permanently assigned to the Treatment Plants. 
 

2. Shift Schedules: 
a. Schedules: 

 
i. The forty (40) hour weekly work schedule for 

employees/operators/relief operators will either be: 
 

a) Five (5) eight (8) hour work days in a one week period. (Hours and days 
are fixed by schedule, but subject to change.); or, 

b) Four (4) ten (10) hour workdays in a one week period. (Hours and days are 
fixed by schedule, but subject to change.). 

 
b. Shift Assignment: The City retains complete discretion to determine the most efficient and 

cost effective means to operate the treatment plant facilities. Operators have no 
entitlement to any particular shift assignment or right to retain their assignment to any 
particular shift.  

 
 

3. Holidays: 
a. Holiday Pay for Employees Scheduled but not working: 

 
i. All employees (regardless of shift assignment) will receive eight (8) hours of 

holiday pay for each designated holiday, pursuant to the City’s Rules and 
Regulations.  

ii. If the regularly scheduled workday is greater than 8 hours, the employee may:  
elect to use either vacation or compensatory time earned to make up for the time 
in excess of the 8 hours that the employee was scheduled to work; or 
elect to forego compensation for the difference; or 
if the department director approves, an employee may work additional hours 
during the same workweek as the holiday (not overtime), in lieu of using accrued 
leave 
 
 

 



2 

b. Holiday on Day Off: 
 

i. 8-Hour Shift Employees - When a paid holiday falls on an employee’s regularly 
scheduled day off, the employee will be given an alternate 8 hour day off during 
the same workweek as the holiday. If the employee is required to work this day, 
he/she shall receive Overtime for Holiday Work according to the Personnel code 
section 2220.50 for the actual hours worked on his/her holiday. 

 
ii. 10-Hour Shift Employees - When a paid holiday falls on an employee’s regularly 

scheduled day off, the employee will be given an alternate 8 hour day off during 
the same workweek as the holiday. If the alternate scheduled workday is greater 
than 8 hours, the employee may:  
elect to use either vacation or compensatory time earned to make up for the time 
in excess of the 8 hours that the employee was originally scheduled to work; or 
elect to forego compensation for the difference; or 
upon supervisor approval, an employee may work additional hours during the 
same designated workweek as the holiday (will not be overtime), in lieu of using 
accrued leave. 
If the employee is required to work this day, he/she shall receive Overtime for 
Holiday Work according to the Personnel code section 2220.50 for the actual 
hours worked on his/her holiday. 

 
4. Water/Wastewater Employees Stand-by Time: 

a. This section addresses Water/Wastewater treatment plant employees on stand-by for 
after hours and weekend/holidays. Stand-by pay shall be $2.45 per hour for all hours 
occurring between the end of the shift and the beginning of the next regular shift. 
Assignment to stand-by will be according to specified work schedules as assigned by the 
Department Head. Specific days may be traded during the pay period and can be 
accommodated if there is a stand-by eligible employee available and willing to cover the 
day(s).  

 
i. Stand-by is typically associated to specified work shifts as assigned by the 

Department Head. 
 
OVERTIME for WATER AND WASTEWATER EMPLOYEES 
Employees in this unit who work in excess of their standard (i.e. regularly scheduled) daily shift 
(excluding any approved added Holiday hours), or in excess of the applicable overtime threshold, 40 
hours in the designated 7-day work period, shall be compensated for such overtime at a rate of one and 
one‐half (1‐1/2) times the employee’s regular rate of pay.  
 
 

______________________________   _______________ 
Catrina Olson, City Manager     Date 

 
______________________________   _______________ 
Loree’ McCay, Administrative Services Manager  Date 

 
______________________________   _______________ 
Bill Sander, Wastewater/Water Operator II   Date 

 
______________________________   _______________ 
Monica Barbao, Police Records Coordinator   Date 
 
______________________________   _______________ 
Shane Kinne, Maintenance Worker II    Date 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City, CA  95959 
April 10, 2019                  www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Award of Contract for Seaman’s Lodge Floor Refinish at Pioneer Park  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass Resolution 2019-XX awarding a contract to Guy & Co. 
Woodfloors in the amount of $4,660.00 plus $700.00 in contingencies for Seaman’s Lodge 
floor refinish at Pioneer Park in Nevada City and authorize the Mayor to sign. 
 
CONTACT:  Bryan K. McAlister, City Engineer 
           Dawn Zydonis, Parks and Recreation Manager 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
Dawn Zydonis, Nevada City Parks and Recreation Manager, and City Engineering and Public 
Works staff identified Seaman’s Lodge floor refinishing as a priority for renovation at Pioneer 
Park.   Seaman’s Lodge is available for use for facility rentals and is regularly used by City 
residents. 
 
City staff solicited bids from local contractors.  Bids received are as follows: 
            

• Guy & Co. Woodfloors, Nevada City CA    $  4,660.00  

• Riley’s Hardwood Flooring, Grass Valley CA   $  6,260.00  
 

Guy & Co. Woodfloors was selected as the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.    
 
FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The fiscal year 2018-2019 Parks and Recreation budget 
includes budgeted outside service maintenance for Pioneer Park facility improvements. 
   
ATTACHMENT: 
 Resolution 2019-XX awarding a contract to Guy & Co. for Seaman’s Lodge Floor 

Refinish at Pioneer Park 
 Contract for Seaman’s Lodge Floor Refinish at Pioneer Park 

 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


RESOLUTION NO. 2018-XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
TO AWARD A CONTRACT TO GUY & CO. FOR SEAMANS LODGE FLOOR 

REFINISH AT PIONEER PARK  

WHEREAS, the City of Nevada City continues to invest in the maintenance of 
its property assets on an annual basis; and 

WHEREAS, funding for the Seaman’s Lodge Floor Refinish at Pioneer Park is 
provided through fiscal year 2019-2020 Special Funds Buildings and Grounds 
budgeted capital outlay for Pioneer Park; and 

WHEREAS, consistent with Municipal Code requirements, City staff advertised 
and received bids for Seaman’s Lodge Floor Refinish at Pioneer Park in Nevada 
City.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Nevada 
City to award a contract to Guy & Co. Woodfloors in the amount of $4,660.00 plus 
$700.00 in contingencies for Seaman’s Lodge Floor Refinish at Pioneer Park in 
Nevada City and authorize the Mayor to sign. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Nevada City on the 10th day of April, 2019, by the following vote:  

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:   

 
      ________________________________ 
      David Parker, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 





























REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City, CA  95959 
April 10, 2019                  www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Award of Contract for 211 Broad St. (National Hotel) Sidewalk in Nevada City  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Pass Resolution 2019-XX awarding a contract to Central Valley 
Engineering Asphalt Inc. in the amount of $96,780 plus $10,000 in contingencies for 211 Broad 
St. (National Hotel) Sidewalk and authorize the Mayor to sign. 
 
CONTACT:  Bryan K. McAlister, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
The City Engineer and Public Works staff identified areas where street rehabilitation is needed 
at Broad Street. 
   
City staff procured bids for 211 Broad Street (National Hotel) Sidewalk as advertised in March, 
2019.  Three bids were received, as follows: 
 

• Central Valley Engineering Asphalt Inc, Roseville, CA  $  96,780 

• DMCE Inc. Concrete, Grass Valley CA    $ 100,981 

• Bobby Jones Concrete, Nevada City CA    $ 136,900 
 
Central Valley Engineering Asphalt Inc. was selected as the lowest responsive and responsible 
bidder. 
 
FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The project will be funded by Measure “S” funds. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 Resolution 2018-XX Award a Contract to Central Valley Engineering Asphalt Inc for 211 

Broad St. (National Hotel) Sidewalk  
 Contract for 211 Broad St. (National Hotel) Sidewalk 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


RESOLUTION NO. 2019-XX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
TO AWARD A CONTRACT TO CENTRAL VALLEY ENGINEERING 

ASPHALT INC FOR 211 BROAD STREET (NATIONAL HOTEL) SIDEWALK 
IN NEVADA CITY AND AUTHORIZE MAYOR TO SIGN  

 
WHEREAS, The City of Nevada City has a voter approved sales tax for Measure 
“S” Paving And Reconstruction Of Various Streets; and 

WHEREAS, the sidewalk frontage at 211 Broad Street has been identified as a 
priority for Measure S street sidewalk and drainage improvements; and 

WHEREAS, consistent with the Municipal Code requirements, City staff 
advertised and received bids for 211 Broad St. (National Hotel) Sidewalk project.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Nevada 
City to award a contract to Central Valley Engineering Asphalt Inc. in the amount 
of $96,780 plus $10,000 contingencies for 211 Broad St. (National Hotel) Sidewalk 
and authorize the Mayor to sign. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Nevada City on the 10th day of April, 2019, by the following vote:  

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:   
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      David Parker, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 



211 BROAD ST.  

(NATIONAL HOTEL) 

SIDEWALK 

 

 

City of Nevada City, 95959 
Nevada County, California 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________                         ______________________________ 

Bryan K. McAlister       William J. Falconi 
PE C58570        PE 25842 
PLS 9199         PLS 4911 



 
 
 

NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR'S 

211 Broad St. (National Hotel) Sidewalk  
 

Sealed proposals for 211 Broad St. (National Hotel) Sidewalk will be received by the City at City Hall, 317 Broad 
Street, Nevada City, California, 95959, until 3:00 PM on April 4th, 2019, at which time, or as soon thereafter as 
practicable, all such proposals will be publicly opened and read at City Hall, 317 211 Broad St. (National Hotel), 

Nevada City, California.   
 

Bids shall be enclosed and sealed in an envelope addressed to the City of Nevada City at the above stated address 
and shall be marked “211 Broad St. (National Hotel) Sidewalk ". 
 

The work includes the furnishing of all labor, materials, and equipment required for the job in accordance with the 
plans, specifications and other contract documents as set forth by the City Engineer. Such bid documents will be on 
file with the City staff and are available for inspection during office hours.  

******************************************************************************************** 

 

The City reserves the right to reject all bids; or to accept any portion of bid schedule; to reject any bid which is 
incomplete or irregular; to determine which proposal is, in its judgment, the lowest responsible bid of a responsible 
bidder and to waive any informality or minor irregularity of any bid. 

 

DATED: March 19, 2019    CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

 

 

               
      ______________________________ 

       William J. Falconi 

       Assistant City Engineer 

 
 
 

  













 
GENERAL CONDITIONS 

 
 

1. Inspection of Construction 
 

The Engineer shall have access to the work and the site of the work at all times and the Contractor shall 
afford such access to the Engineer and shall furnish all relevant information requested by him.  At the request of 
the Engineer the Contractor shall open for inspection any part of the work which has been covered up, and if 
any part of the work has been covered up in contravention of the instructions of the Engineer, or if on being 
opened up, is found not to be in accordance with the terms of the contract, the expense of opening and 
recovering shall be charged to the Contractor.  If the work has been covered up but not in contravention of such 
instructions and is found to be in accordance with the terms of the contract, the actual cost of opening and 
recovering shall be borne by the City, and in such case, if the work of opening and recovering is done by the 
Contractor, it shall be considered as extra work and paid for accordingly. 

 
2. Change Orders 

 
 If for any reason it becomes necessary or desirable to change the alignment, dimensions, or design of the 
work, the City shall have the right to issue written change orders therefore.  If the Contractor considers that any 
such change involves extra work, he shall immediately so notify the Engineer in writing, and shall make claim 
for compensation for such work not later than the first day of the month following the month in which the work 
was performed.  If, in the opinion of the Engineer, any change order results in a change in the amount of work 
performed, the contract price shall be adjusted for extra work or omitted work, as the case may be. 
 

3. Contractor’s Employees and Subcontractors 
 
 The Contractor shall at all times be responsible for the adequacy and efficiency of his employees and any 
subcontractor and the latter’s employees.  All workers shall have adequate skill and experience to perform 
properly the work assigned to them. 
 

4. Errors and Omissions 
 
 If the Contractor in the course of the work becomes aware of any error or omission in the contract 
documents, or of any discrepancy between such documents and the physical conditions of the work site, he shall 
immediately inform the Engineer, who shall take such action as he may deem necessary in order to rectify the 
matter.  Any work done after such discovery and without the authorization of the Engineer will be at the 
Contractor’s risk. 
 

5. Guaranty of Work 
 

 For a period of one (1) year after final acceptance of the work by the City, the Contractor shall make all 
Improvements and replacements arising out of any defective workmanship or materials.  If the Contractor fails 
to make such repairs or replacements within ten (10) days after receiving written notice to do so, or within such 
further time as may be allowed by the City, the City may undertake such repairs or replacements, in which case 
the Contractor shall be liable to the City for the cost thereof. 
 

6. Contractor’s Responsibility for Work 
 
 The Contractor shall be responsible for the proper care and protection of the work, and of all materials 
delivered to the work site, until completion of the work and its final acceptance by the City. 



 
 

7. Performance Bond 
 
 No Performance bond shall be required for this project. 
 

8. Payment Bond 
 

A payment (labor and materials) bond is required for public works contracts involving an expenditure in 
excess of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000).   If the contract is in excess of this amount the contractor 
shall provide a payment bond to the City of Nevada City before commencement of work.   Cost for the bond 
shall be included in the contractor bid proposal and no additional compensation will be provided.    
 
A payment bond shall be in an amount not less than 100 percent of the total amount payable pursuant to the 
contract. The bond shall be in the form of a bond and not a deposit in lieu of a bond. The bond shall be 
executed by an admitted surety insurer. 
 
9. Workmen’s Compensation Insurance 

 
 The Contractor shall carry workmen’s compensation insurance for all employees working on or about the 
site of the work, and if any work is subcontracted, the Contractor shall require each subcontractor to carry such 
insurance for all of the latter’s employees, unless they are covered by the Contractor’s insurance. 
 

10. Insurance Requirements 
 
 CONTRACTOR shall purchase and maintain insurance in amounts of coverage not less than the following 
amounts: 
 
   General Liability:  $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury,  
   (Including operations,  personal injury and property damage.  If     
   products and completed Commercial General Liability Insurance or 
   operations)   other form with a general aggregate limit is   
       used either the general aggregate limit shall 
       apply separately to this project/location or 
       the general aggregate limit shall be twice     
       the required occurrence limit.  
 
   Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury  
       and property damage. 
 
 The Contractor shall deliver to the City, concurrently with the execution of the contract, certificates 
evidencing all insurance required by the contract, and each such certificate shall include a provision to the effect 
that the policy or policies cannot be canceled or materially modified unless the insurer gives the City at least 
fifteen (15) days written notice thereof prior to such cancellation or modification.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
11.  Prevailing Wages 
Contractor shall pay each laborer, workman or mechanic in accordance with State and Federal Prevailing Wage 
Rates and the California Labor Code. These wage rates are hereby made a part of this contract: 
 

State General Prevailing Wage Determinations in effect on date advertised 
General prevailing wage determination 
Journeyman and Apprentice Prevailing Wage Rates can be accessed at the following websites: 
http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/2017-2/PWD/index.htm  and 
http://www.dir.ca.gov/das/publicworks.html  
 
Reference: Labor Code http://www.labor.ca.gov/laborlawreg.htm 
 
Federal Prevailing Wage Determinations in effect on bid date 
General Decision # CA170009 CA9 
http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/ca.html 
 

Electronic Certified Payroll Records 
 All contractors must furnish electronic certified payroll records to the Labor Commissioner using the 

online eCPR data system 

 No contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal for a public works project unless 
registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5 [with 
limited exceptions from this requirement for bid purposes only under Labor Code section 1771.1(a)]. 

 No contractor or subcontractor may be awarded a contract for public work on a public works project 
unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5. 

 This project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial 
Relations. 

 The contractor shall post job site notices prescribed by regulation. (See 8 Calif. Code Reg. §16451(d) 
   



 

Project Specifications  

 

PROJECT LIMITS 

Project is located at 211 Broad St. (National Hotel), Nevada City, CA.  Project limits are as shown on the improvement 

plans. 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The project is to replace the sidewalk along the full frontage of the National Hotel with improved ADA Access 
to the building entrances. Contractor to furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary for the project.    
Disposal of demolished materials, debris or excess material shall be provided by the contractor at their expense.   
Traffic control and sidewalk closure temporary fencing shall be provided by the contractor at their expense. 

EXPECTED DATE OF COMPLETION IS JUNE 1, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







C-1

TITLE SHEET

Sidewalk Improvements
Broad Street

5 0 5 - B    C O Y O T E    S T R E E T           N E V A D A     CITY
( 5 3 0 ) 2 6 5 - 6 9 1 1

ENGINEERING                SURVEYING
PLANNING

NEVADA
CITY
ENGINEERING,  INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/28/19

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
S H E E T    I N D E X

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 0 5    C O Y O T E    S T R E E T    *    P . O .   B O X    1 4 3 7    *    N E V A D A    C I T Y     ,    C A L I F .

AutoCAD SHX Text
P R E P A R E D    B Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
T I T L E    S H E E T

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N   &   P R O F I L E

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
N O T E S   &   D E T A I L S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R E V I E W E D   A N D   A P P R O V E D   O N   B E H A L F   O F   T H E

AutoCAD SHX Text
B R Y A N   K   M C A L I S T E R   ,   R. C. E. 5 8 5 7 0

AutoCAD SHX Text
C I T Y   E N G I N E E R

AutoCAD SHX Text
   D A T E :

AutoCAD SHX Text
C I T Y   O F   N E V A D A   C I T Y   B Y :   

AutoCAD SHX Text
C I T Y   O F   N E V A D A   C I T Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
C I T Y   O F   N E V A D A   C I T Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
C I T Y   O F   N E V A D A   C I T Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
C I T Y   O F   N E V A D A   C I T Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
C I T Y   O F   N E V A D A   C I T Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
C I T Y   O F   N E V A D A   C I T Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
AL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH           PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
YORK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIBULATION TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABIN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SACRAMENTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROSPECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRING

AutoCAD SHX Text
G O L D E N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E E   S H E E T   2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C E N T E R

AutoCAD SHX Text
F R E E W A Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST



C-2

PLAN & PROFILE

Sidewalk Improvements
Broad Street

5 0 5 - B    C O Y O T E    S T R E E T           N E V A D A     CITY
( 5 3 0 ) 2 6 5 - 6 9 1 1

ENGINEERING                SURVEYING
PLANNING

NEVADA
CITY
ENGINEERING,  INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0%%% MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
-5.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-4.3%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-5.9%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
 07.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
07.25 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF:07.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
 07.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
 07.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
 06.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
 06.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF:06.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF:06.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
 06.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
 06.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF:05.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05.78 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF:05.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
 04.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
WARP TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF:05.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
B R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S T R E E T

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
2707.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
 06.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
06.25 

AutoCAD SHX Text
06.36 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0%%% MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0%%% MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
 06.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
 04.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05.30 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
 04.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
 04.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
 03.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
 04.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
 03.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFORM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
06.14 

AutoCAD SHX Text
06.22 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 (E)02.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
 (E) 02.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
 03.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
 03.67 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 02.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
 02.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
 06.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
06.76 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 hitch

AutoCAD SHX Text
 sign post

AutoCAD SHX Text
 sign post

AutoCAD SHX Text
-3.1%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
 06.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:48  MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:20    MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.56%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.67%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.74%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.86%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.94%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.58%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.54%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.39%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-3.02%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.91%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-3.74%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-3.17%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-3.31%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-0.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.67%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-1.92%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.18%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-0.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-5.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-4.27%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.00%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-5.94%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) BACK OF WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1'' = 5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/28/19

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2707 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2706 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2705 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2704 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2703 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 2707 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 2706 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 2705 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 2704 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 2703 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE : 1" = 5' HORIZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 0.5' VERT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+25

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+50

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+75

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+25

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVI:0+22.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV:2707.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVI:0+28.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV:2707.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVI:0+41.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV:2706.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVI:0+58.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV:2706.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVI:0+78.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV:2705.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVI:0+86.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV:2705.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVI:0+94.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV:2705.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVI:0+99.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV:2705.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVI:1+30.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV:CONFORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVI:0+10.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV:CONFORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
 A

AutoCAD SHX Text
 A

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DECK SUPPORT POST (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SIGN POST TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SIGN POST TO BE REPLACED

AutoCAD SHX Text
AFTER CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PARKING METER ASSEMBLY TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING MAILBOX TO BE REPLACED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AFTER CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT TO BE ADJUSTED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BENCH TO BE REPLACED AFTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STREET LIGHT ASSEMBLY TO BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTED TO GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING VENT GRATE TO BE PRESERVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND REPLACED IN NEW SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TILED DOOR STOOP TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING UTILITY CONDUITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DOWNSPOUT TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING UTILITY VAULTS TO BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW CUT EXISTING PAVEMENT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT "LOADING ZONE" WHITE STRIPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL DETECTABLE WARNING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT NEW CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRIND AND OVERLAY EXISTING ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO CONFORM TO NEW CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECONSTRUCT EXISTING DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR TO WORK WITH CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL TYPE GO DROP INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH CURB INLET (MATCH EXISTING INVERTS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTED TO GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A NEAT CLEAN LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO DETERMINE FINAL GRADES

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT NEW PARALLEL PARKING STRIPE (BY CITY CREW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT CURB "RED" (BY CITY CREW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT NEW CONCRETE RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION A-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P9'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 BLD FACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE PRESERVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRIND

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" AC OVERLAY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" AC PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVER 8" CL II AGG BASE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 4" THICK CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 W/ #3 REBAR @ 18" OC

AutoCAD SHX Text
 BOTH WAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6" CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EXIST SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPLACE EXISTING STORM DRAIN WITH 8" SDR 35 PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N) BACK OF WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM DRAIN, PROTECT IN PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO STORM DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL EXISTING GRANITE CURB SHALL BE SALVAGED TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY CORPORATION YARD FOR REUSE.



C-3

NOTES & DETAILS

Sidewalk Improvements
Broad Street

5 0 5 - B    C O Y O T E    S T R E E T           N E V A D A     CITY
( 5 3 0 ) 2 6 5 - 6 9 1 1

ENGINEERING                SURVEYING
PLANNING

NEVADA
CITY
ENGINEERING,  INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/28/19

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION JOINTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT GRADE BREAKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G E N E R A L   N O T E S :

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A N D   S P E C I F I C A T I O N S :

AutoCAD SHX Text
S T A N D A R D   P L A N S   

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL STREET, SEWER AND DRAINAGE PIPELINES, AND SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THESE PLANS, THE DETAILS SHOWN HEREON, THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY'S LATEST EDITION OF CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS, IMPROVEMENT STANDARDS, STANDARD DRAWINGS AND STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS DATED JULY, 1995. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL ELEVATIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON U.S.G.S. DATUM AS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFERRED TO CONTROL POINT IDENTIFIED AS CP-12, ELEVATION OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2707.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT BEGIN WORK SHOWN ON THESE PLANS UNTIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CITY ENGINEER'S SIGNATURE OF APPROVAL IS AFFIXED HEREON AND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL APPLICABLE PERMITS HAVE BEEN OBTAINED. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT HIS OWN EXPENSE, PROVIDE ALL PERMITS, CERTIFICATES, AND LICENSES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED BY LAW, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY AGREED WITH BY OWNER TO BE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDED BY OWNER. THERE SHALL BE AN APPROVED SET OF PLANS ON 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE JOB DURING ANY CONSTRUCTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN AN ENCROACHMENT PERMIT FROM THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF NEVADA CITY PRIOR TO DOING ANY WORK WITHIN THE CITY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY ENGINEERING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPT. TO SCHEDULE A PRE CONSTRUCTION MEETING AT LEAST TEN (10) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION (TELEPHONE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
530-265-2496).

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME SOLE AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION OF THIS PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS AND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY. THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITED TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DEFEND, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE OWNER AND THE DESIGN ENGINEER HARMLESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR ALLEGED IN CONNECTION WITH THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERFORMANCE OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT, EXCEPTING FOR LIABILITY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARISING FROM THE INTENTIONAL NEGLIGENCE OF THE OWNER OR ENGINEER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR IS HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT PRIOR TO COMMENCING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION HE IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING ALL UTILITY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPANIES FOR VERIFICATION AT THE CONSTRUCTION SITE OF THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATIONS OF ALL UNDERGROUND FACILITIES WHERE SUCH FACILITIES MAY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFLICT WITH PLACEMENT OF IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN. CALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
"UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT" AT 800-642-2444 PRIOR TO ANY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCAVATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE LOCATIONS OF ALL UNDERGROUND FACILITIES SHOWN ON THIS PLAN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARE APPROXIMATE. A REASONABLE EFFORT HAS BEEN MADE TO LOCATE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND DELINEATE ALL UNDERGROUND FACILITIES, HOWEVER, THE DESIGN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THE EXISTING FACILITIES SHOWN HEREON OR FOR THE EXISTENCE OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTHER UNDERGROUND UTILITIES NOT SHOWN ON THESE PLANS. THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING FACILITIES AND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE DESIGN ENGINEER IF ANY SUCH FACILITIES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERFERE WITH THE CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS. IF SO DIRECTED BY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE DESIGN ENGINEER, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL STOP WORK IMMEDIATELY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNTIL REMEDIAL ACTION CAN BE TAKEN. ANY COST RESULTING FROM THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTORS FAILURE TO REPORT WORK AS DIRECTED, WILL BE THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REQUEST CONSTRUCTION STAKING FOR ANY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTICULAR PHASE OR WORK NO LESS THAN TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REQUEST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A FORM OR GRADE STAKE PRIOR TO PLACING OF IMPROVEMENTS. THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNERS ENGINEER SHALL SET ONE SET OF STAKES WITH R.P. STAKES AS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT THE PROJECT. ALL STAKES AND SURVEY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARKERS WILL BE CONSPICUOUSLY MARKED WITH FLAGGING TAPE AND THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR SHALL INFORM HIS EMPLOYEES AND HIS SUB-CONTRACTORS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THEIR IMPORTANCE AND THE NECESSITY FOR THEIR PRESERVATION. THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE AND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROTECTION OF ALL SURVEY MARKERS OR STAKES ONCE SET AND SHALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY REPLACEMENT. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESPONSIBLE FOR MISTAKES IN CONSTRUCTION CAUSED BY THE LOSS OR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTURBANCE OF SURVEY STAKES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIOR TO ANY CORRECTIVE ACTION BY THE CONTRACTOR, THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE DESIGN ENGINEER FOR VERIFICATION AND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESTAKING AS REQUIRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ONE COMPLETE SET OF AS-BUILT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANGES. THE CHANGES SHALL BE PLACED ON A CLEAN SET OF BLUE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE DRAWINGS IN RED, AND GIVEN TO THE DESIGN ENGINEER AT JOB 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPLETION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CALIFORNIA DIVISION OF OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENFORCES THE REQUIREMENT THAT BUILDING AND CONSTRUCTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTORS OBTAIN A PERMIT PRIOR TO COMMENCING CERTAIN TYPE OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAZARDOUS ACTIVITY, AS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 6500 OF THE STATE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LABOR CODE AND SECTION 341 OF TITLE 8 OF THE CALIFORNIA CODE OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGULATIONS, THESE ACTIVITIES INCLUDE CONSTRUCTION OF TRENCHES OR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCAVATIONS WHICH ARE FIVE FEET OR DEEPER AND INTO WHICH A 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERSON IS REQUIRED TO DESCEND, THE CONSTRUCTION OR DEMOLITION OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANY BUILDING, STRUCTURE FALSE WORK, OR SCAFFOLDING MORE THAN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THREE STORIES HIGH OR THE EQUIVALENT HEIGHT, AND THE UNDERGROUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE OF DIESEL ENGINES IN WORK IN MINES AND TUNNELS. CONSTRUCTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMITS ARE ISSUED BY DISTRICT OFFICES OF THE DIVISION. THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SACRAMENTO OFFICE IS LOCATED AT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
   STATE OF CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
   INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
   DIVISION OF OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
   2422 ARDEN WAY, #B-55

AutoCAD SHX Text
   SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA  95825

AutoCAD SHX Text
   (916) 920-6123

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF ANY HAZARDOUS WASTE IS ENCOUNTERED DURING THE CONSTRUCTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THIS PROJECT, ALL WORK SHALL BE IMMEDIATELY STOPPED AND THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEVADA COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT, THE FIRE DEPT., 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE POLICE DEPARTMENT, AND THE CITY INSPECTOR SHALL BE NOTIFIED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMMEDIATELY. WORK SHALL NOT PROCEED UNTIL THE CLEARANCE HAS BEEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUED BY ALL OF THESE AGENCIES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB, GUTTER, & SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%% MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTYPE A2-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MIN. AGG. BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
M A T E R I A L   N O T E S :

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGGREGATE BASE SHALL BE CLASS 2, 3/4'' MAXIMUM GRADING CONFORMING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO STATE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. SECTION 26, PLACED AT 95

AutoCAD SHX Text
% 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RELATIVE COMPACTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT CONCRETE SHALL BE TYPE B, 3/4'' MAXIMUM, MEDIUM GRADING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH STATE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION 39, 93 AND 94. ASPHALT CONCRETE SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 95

AutoCAD SHX Text
% RELATIVE COMPACTION W/ AN AIR VOIDS RATIO OF 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
%-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
%.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL CONCRETE SHALL DEVELOP A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,500 PSI AT 28 DAYS AND SHALL BE CLASS B CONFORMING TO STATE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, SECTION 90.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL CONCRETE REINFORCEMENT SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM YIELD STRESS OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
40,000 PSI AND SHALL CONFORM TO STATE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION 52.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL STORM DRAIN CONDUIT SHALL BE 16 GAUGE CSP, SDR 35 PVC, OR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HI-Q PIPE AS MANUFACTURED BY HANCOR, INC. (OR APPROVED EQUAL), 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE (HDPE) CORRUGATED EXTERIOR / SMOOTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR PIPE CONFORMING TO AASHTO M294 TYPE S. ALL JOINTS AND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FITTINGS SHALL ALSO CONFORM TO AASHTO M294, OR BE APPROVED BY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE ENGINEER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E A R T H W O R K   A N D   G R A D I N G :

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT BOTH THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY CITY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER AND THE SOIL ENGINEER 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE START OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTHWORK AND GRADING CONSTRUCTION. PRIOR TO NOTIFICATION ALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE STAKES SHALL BE IN PLACE IDENTIFYING LIMITS OF ALL CUT AND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILL ACTIVITIES, AND TREE PROTECTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP ADJOINING PUBLIC STREETS FREE OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT DIRT, MUD, MATERIALS, AND DEBRIS DURING THE CONSTRUCTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERIOD. IF ANY EXISTING CITY STREETS ARE DAMAGED DURING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR/DEVELOPER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE REPAIR AT NO COST TO THE CITY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL FILLS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO 90

AutoCAD SHX Text
% RELATIVE COMPACTION, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCEPTING THE UPPER 6'' SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO 95

AutoCAD SHX Text
% RELATIVE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTION.  ALL EXCAVATION AREAS SHALL BE SCARIFIED TO 6'' BELOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB GRADE AND REPLACED AT 95

AutoCAD SHX Text
% RELATIVE COMPACTION. COMPACTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TESTING SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE STANDARD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF GRADING OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS UNEARTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHAEOLOGICAL OR HISTORIC ARTIFACTS OR RESOURCES, CONSTRUCTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTIVITIES SHALL CEASE AND THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE CITY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF NEVADA CITY PLANNING DEPARTMENT, AT (530) 265-2496.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIOR TO FINAL PREPARATION OF THE SUB GRADE AND PLACEMENT OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT BASE MATERIALS, ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHALL BE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALLED AND SERVICE CONNECTIONS STUBBED OUT BEHIND THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARDSCAPE IMPROVEMENT. PUBLIC UTILITIES, CABLE TV, SANITARY SEWERS, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND WATER LINES, SHALL BE INSTALLED IN A MANNER WHICH WILL NOT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTURB THE STREET PAVEMENT, CURB, GUTTER AND SIDEWALK, WHEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE SERVICE CONNECTIONS OR EXTENSIONS ARE MADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK SCORING PATTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMIT OF PAYMENT FOR D.I. INCLUDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAME SLOPE AS GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE GO DROP INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER PAN AS A PART OF D.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB OPENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" DEPRESSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CLASS B CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORMAL FLOWLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLLED CURB SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACK OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL EACH SIDE IN SAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORMAL FLOWLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION A-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND A-555 GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-11-3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINKERTON A-554 FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS AREA TO CONFORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WARP GUTTER FACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINKERTON A-602 SIDE INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" DEPRESSION ( MAX. )

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORMAL GUTTER FLOW LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMIT OF PAYMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP. EACH SIDE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4''

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION B-B

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 EXISTING COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
 12" TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
 SAW CUT EXISTING CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 AROUND EXISTING COLUMN BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 #4 REBAR DOWEL DRILLED INTO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 EXISTING SIDEWALK TO 3" DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
 AND SET WITH EPOXY. TIE DOWEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
 INTO NEW SIDEWALK REBAR MAT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLUMN DETAIL



Sales Tax Update

In Brief

Top 25 producers
 In AlphAbetIcAl Order

www.hdlcompanies.com  |  888.861.0220

Q4
2018

Nevada City

Nevada City’s receipts from Octo-
ber through December were 12.2% 
above the fourth sales period in 
2017. A decline from the county-
wide pool was expected; the City’s 
$33,000 share of an allocation error 
remitted a year ago reversed and 
explained this drop in use tax reve-
nues.  After removing this exception 
and all reporting aberrations, actual 
sales were up 5.0%.

Strength came from improved busi-
ness-industry activity; receipts grew 
in part due to a recent manufac-
turer relocation into the communi-
ty.  Fourth quarter 2018 fuel prices 
were up; this translated to improved 
proceeds by service stations.

Taxes due from prior periods con-
tinued to flow as the State remedied 
issues with its new computer sys-
tem.  However, delayed allocations 
decreased restaurants and general 
consumer goods.

Measure C reported $128,791 this 
period while Measure S brought in 
$172,043. Both amounts include 
delayed State distributions from pri-
or quarters and represent increases 
of 5.4% and 3.7% respectively over 
the prior year.

Net of aberrations, taxable sales 
for all of Nevada County declined 
0.7% over the comparable time pe-
riod; the Far North region was flat.

City of Nevada City

First Quarter Receipts for Fourth Quarter Sales (October - December 2018)

Published by HdL Companies in Spring 2019

49er 
Communications

Abstrakt
Bonanza Market
California Organics
Chevron
County Of Nevada
Crazy Horse Saloon 

& Grill
Electrical Design 

Technology
Elevation 2477
Ferrellgas
Friar Tucks 

Restaurant
Fur Traders
Hospice Gift & Thrift

J H Petroleum
Lefty’s Grill
New Moon Cafe
Northridge Inn
Plaza Tire & Auto 

Service
Robinson 

Enterprises
South Pine Cafe
SPD Market
Stone House
Telestream
Three Forks Bakery 

& Brewing  
Tour of Nevada City 

Bicycle Shop

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

SALES TAX BY MAJOR BUSINESS GROUP

4th Quarter 2017

4th Quarter 2018

Autos
and

Transportation

Food
and

Drugs

General
Consumer

Goods

Fuel and
Service
Stations

Restaurants
and

Hotels

County
and State

Pools

Business
and

Industry

$684,894 $587,982 

 300  269 

 110,758  140,381 

$573,836 $447,333 

2018-192017-18

Point-of-Sale

County Pool

State Pool

Gross Receipts

REVENUE COMPARISON
Two Quarters – Fiscal Year To Date (Q3 to Q4)

Measure S $332,158 $391,108 

Measure C $244,324 $292,409 



NO
TE

S
Sales Tax UpdateQ4 2018 City of Nevada City

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

SALES PER CAPITA

Nevada City

Q4

15

Q4

18

Q4

16

Q4

17

County California

Major Industry Groups Cash Adjusted*
Autos and Transportation 7.9% 5.5%
Building and Construction 4.4% 3.5%
Business and Industry 25.0% 1.2%
Food and Drugs 2.1% 0.4%
Fuel and Service Stations 17.2% 10.4%
General Consumer Goods -1.5% -4.8%
Restaurants and Hotels 13.2% -0.1%
County and State Pools -35.6% -9.3%

Total -4.0% -0.7%

COUNTY OVERALL                                                     
4Q YOY RECEIPTS % CHANGE

*Accounting anomalies factored out

25%
Bus./Ind.

19%

Pools

18%
Restaurants

16%

Fuel

13%

Cons.Goods7%
Food/Drug3%

Others

Nevada City This Quarter
REVENUE BY BUSINESS GROUP 

Statewide Results
The local one cent share of sales and 
use tax from October through Decem-
ber sales was 2.8% higher than 2017’s 
holiday quarter after factoring for state 
reporting aberrations. 

The overall increase came primarily 
from  solid sales of contractor materials 
and equipment, expanded production 
by an auto manufacturer and rising fuel 
prices. Online fulfillment centers, new 
technology investment and cannabis 
start-ups also produced significant gains. 
Receipts in the six-county Sacramento 
region grew 7.9% over last year while the 
remainder of the state was generally flat 
or exhibited only minor growth.

Notable was the 0.09% rise in tax re-
ceipts from brick and mortar retailers 
which was the lowest holiday gain for 
that sector since 2009.  A 9.6% increase 
in receipts from online retailers, driven 
by rapidly changing consumer buying 
habits, was part of the reason for weak 
results from brick-and-mortar stores.  
Other factors include lower prices, gift 
cards which move purchases to future 
quarters and greater gifting of non-tax-
able experiences and services. 

The Retail Evolution Continues 
A recent survey identified U.S. closures 
of 102 million sq. ft. of retail space in 
2017 and an additional 155 million sq. 
ft. in 2018.  Similar losses are expect-
ed in 2019 with 5,300 closures already 
announced.  Payless Shoes, Gymboree, 
Performance Bicycle and Charlotte 
Russe are going out of business while         
chains including Sears, Kmart, Macy’s, 
JCPenney, Kohl’s, Nordstrom, Dollar 
Tree, Victoria’s Secret, Chico’s, Foot 
Locker and Lowe’s have announced 
plans for further cuts in oversaturated 
markets and downsizing of stores. 

Retailers are not planning the end of 
physical stores which continue to be 
important for personalized experiences 
and shopping entertainment.  However, 
the shifting trends encourage reduced 
square footage with less overhead to 
better compete on prices and provide

more intimate shopping experiences. 

With smartphones allowing purchase 
and delivery of almost anything at 
any time of the day without leaving 
home, big box retailers are responding 
by downsizing stores and subleasing 
excess space to compatible businesses 
to help draw traffic.  Locations where 
people congregate for entertainment, 
food and services have  become part of 
the evolving strategy as has integrating  
retail with more convenient spots for 
pick-up and delivery of online orders.

Barry Foster of HdL’s EconSolutions, 
notes that “shifting shopping habits 
present challenges but also opportu-
nities.” “Smaller footprints enable ex-
panding into smaller niche markets 
while mixed use projects and 18-hour 
environments are chances to rebuild 
downtowns and reinvigorate shopping 
centers.”  With more companies using 
the internet to sell directly to customers 
from their warehouses, the trend also 
provides jurisdictions whose populations 
aren’t adequate in size to support large 
scale retail to focus on industrial de-
velopment for sales tax as well as jobs.



1 

[Type here] 
 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
ACTION MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF MARCH 27, 2019 
 

 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to Quick 
Links and Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the screen.  
Select the meeting date and Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, please 
contact Loree’ McCay, Deputy City Clerk at (530) 265-2496, ext 134. 
  
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
-  Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION – None. 

 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:    Present:  Mayor Parker, Vice Mayor Senum, Council Members Minett, 

Strawser and Moberg  
   
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    

 
PROCLAMATIONS:   

1. “DeMolay Month” – March 2019 
2. City of Nevada City Acknowledging Kentucky Flat 4-H Club 

 
PRESENTATIONS: Appointment of Nevada City Police Chief  
  
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 
 
1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
3.  CONSENT ITEMS: 

 
A. Subject:  Fire Activity Report 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

Action: Motion by Senum, seconded by Strawser to approve consent item 3A as 
presented. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 

 
 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


2 

[Type here] 
 

 

4.     APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 
 

A. Subject: City Council Meeting – March 13, 2019 
Action: Motion by Strawser, seconded by Minett to approve March 13, 2019 minutes as 
presented. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
5.     DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 
 

A. Subject: Parks and Recreation Sponsorship Program 
Recommendation: Receive and file. 

Action: Receive and file, no action taken. 
 

B. Subject: Date Change Request for the Second City Council Meeting in July 
and the City Council Meeting in December 2019 
Recommendation: Consider approving a date change request for the 
second City Council meeting in July and the City Council meeting in 
December 2019. 

Action: Motion by Strawser, seconded by Moberg to approve a date change request for 
the second City Council meeting in July to be July 23, 2019 instead of July 24, 2019 and 
for the meeting in December to be December 10, 2019 instead of December 11, 2019. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 
 

C. Subject: Monthly Update on City Council Six-Month Strategic Objectives 
Recommendation: Receive and file. 

Action: Receive and file, no action taken. 
 

D. Subject: Update on Background Checks and Live Scan for Processing 
Cannabis Business Applications 
Recommendation: Receive and file. 

Action: Receive and file, no action taken. 
 
6.     PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A. Subject:  Proposed Rental Fees for Council Chambers at City Hall 
Recommendation:  Pass Resolution 2019-11 approving a fee schedule for 
Beryl P. Robinson Jr. Room (Council Chambers). 

Action:  Motion by Senum, seconded by Strawser to pass Resolution 2019-11 
approving a fee schedule for Beryl P. Robinson Jr. Room (Council Chambers) with  
changes to the guidelines to allow use of City “time bank hours” in exchange for the 
fee, and to allow Nevada City businesses and residents to rent the chambers that may 
be charging for admission (not just non-profits) at the City Manger’s discretion. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 
 
 
 
 



3 

[Type here] 
 

 

7.       OLD BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject:  Mass Notification Siren System  
Recommendation:  Provide staff direction for next steps regarding the 
potential purchase of siren(s) for emergency notifications. 

Action:  City Council directed staff to move forward with locating funding to purchase a 
Siren System selected by staff that will best serve the City’s needs.  
 

B. Subject:  The Annual Housing Progress Report 
Recommendation:  Review the information contained in this staff report and 
direct staff to send the Annual Housing Progress Report, years 2014-2018, 
to HCD. 

Action:  City Council directed staff to send the Annual Housing Progress Report, years 
2014-2018 to California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD). 
 

C. Subject:  An Ordinance of the City of Nevada City Adding Chapter 8.10 to 
Title 8 of the Nevada City Municipal Code Establishing Miscellaneous Fire 
Control Regulations 
Recommendation:  Introduce by title only, and waive reading the full 
reading of Ordinance, second reading of an Ordinance 2019-03 adding 
Chapter 8.10 to Title 8 of the Nevada City Municipal Code establishing 
Vegetation Management, Debris Removal and Abatement Regulations. 

Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Moberg to introduce by title only and wave 
reading the full reading of Ordinance, second reading of an Ordinance 2019-03 adding 
Chapter 8.10 to Title 8 of the Nevada City Municipal Code establishing Vegetation 
Management, Debris Removal and Abatement Regulations with correction to section 
8.10.070, Violation – Penalty. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 
 

D. Subject:  Nevada City Arts Council- Temporary Art Installation at Robinson 
Plaza 
Recommendation:  Approve the proposed temporary art exhibit at 
Robinson Plaza. 

Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Minett to approve the proposed temporary 
art exhibit at Robinson Plaza. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 

 
8.      NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject:  Memorandum of Understanding for the Sustainable Energy and 
Economic Development Fund (SEED-Fund), administered by Strategic 
Energy Innovations (SEI) 
Recommendation: Approve the attached Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) between the City of Nevada City and Strategic Energy Innovations 
and authorize the City Manager to sign. 

Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Moberg to approve the Memorandum of 



4 

[Type here] 
 

 

Understanding (MOU) between the City of Nevada City and Strategic Energy 
Innovations and authorize the City Manager to sign. 

 (Approved 5 - 0) 
 

B. Subject:  Technology Committee Update 
Recommendation: Receive and file. 

Action:  No action, receive and file. 
 
9.        CORRESPONDENCE:   
 
10. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  
 
11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:   
 
12.      ADJOURNMENT:  - 8:32 PM 
                               

                                       
_______________________________________          

     David Parker, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 

____________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City, CA  95959 
April 10, 2019                  www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Nevada City Residential Chipping Pilot Program 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve a Nevada City Residential Chipping Pilot Program to be 
evaluated July 2019. 
 
CONTACT:  Sam Goodspeed, Division Chief 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
The City of Nevada City, in conjunction with the Nevada City Fire Department and Department 
of Public Works, seeks to create a fire ready community, is encouraging residents to take 
actions to minimize home loss by preparing for a wildfire before it occurs.   
 
Residents in Nevada City can contribute to fuel reduction efforts by being fire ready and 
clearing defensible space on their individual properties each season.  This project contributes 
to the maintenance of forest health, and helps reduce the impact of wildfires on wildlands, 
watersheds and local properties.   
 
The Nevada City Residential Chipping Pilot Program will provide the residents of Nevada City 
with a no-cost, “curb side” chipping service as an incentive to assist homeowners in their fire 
hazard reduction/defensible space efforts and to encourage the reduction of combustible 
material to small biodegradable chip piles.  
 
This Program will also allow Firefighters to work more efficiently by reducing ignition points and 
creating fuel breaks along roads in Nevada City, and to make evacuations safer during a 
wildfire.  
 
Division Chief Goodspeed along with the Department of Public Works, using a Nevada City 
Fire Department pick-up truck and the City owned chipper, would administer this Program.  
The Program would operate on the second and fourth Monday of each month and will be 
evaluated at the end of July with Division Chief Goodspeed reporting to the City Council in 
August as to its effectivity. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Will reduce fire prone fuels within the City of  
Nevada City. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Allocation of hours in the Division Chief schedule.  Fuel and maintenance 
costs associated with tow and chipper. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Nevada City Residential Chipping Pilot Program Guidelines  
 Nevada City Residential Chipping Pilot Program Application 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


NEVADA CITY RESIDENTIAL CHIPPING PROGRAM 
GUIDELINES 

Piles must be prepared per these guidelines or they may not be chipped. 

• The Program is designed for residential use only. No business or commercial use. 
• The Program is available to City of Nevada City residents ONLY. 
• Chipping will occur alongside the road/driveway or other areas that allow the crew to 

work around the wood debris piles safely. 
• All material to be chipped shall be placed along the edge of the road/driveway with the 

cut ends pointing towards the road.  
• Material must less than 10 inches in diameter. 
• No one piece of material may weigh more than 50 pounds. 
• No dozer or tractor piles. 
• Do not place piles where they might block roadways or access. 
• Don't put piles within 10 feet of power poles. 
• The chipper and truck must be able to get to a place they can turn around. 
• Place piles within 5-6 feet of chipper access, preferably on the uphill side of road. 
• Do not make piles more than 4 feet tall. 

Things that CANNOT go in your Piles:  

• No root balls or stumps. 
• No rocks, dirt and mud. 
• No POISON OAK and other vines.  
• No spiny plants, roses or blackberries. 
• No nails, wires or any metal pieces. 
• No construction materials or dimensional lumber. 
• No rakings or piles of needles, leaves or grass. 

Things you should know: 

• All material chipped will be blown back onto the property in a place the crew deems 
practical and safe. You are responsible for spreading out the piles of chips. 

• You will be responsible for disposing of any unchipped materials. 
• You do not have to be home when the chipper comes. 
• You are responsible for following environmental regulations concerning vegetation 

removal.  
• Chipping scotch broom and other invasive weeds can spread their seeds and is not 

recommended. 
• The program is intended to address access routes and defensible space. There may be 

limits on the hours the chipper may spend at any one property. Please be as accurate as 
possible with the information you provide on your application. 



NEVADA CITY RESIDENTIAL CHIPPING PROGRAM 
APPLICATION 

 

Last Name: ____________________________ First Name: ____________________________________ 

Phone Number: (____) _____________ Email: ______________________________________________ 

Property Address: _____________________________________________________________________ 

Are You the Property Owner?  Yes  No  If not, please provide owners name and address: 

Name: _______________________________________________________________________________ 

Mailing Address (If Different): 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Locked Gate? Yes No Please Provide Access Code: ___________________________________ 

Total Number of Piles: ___________________ (Anything more than what is stated here, may be rejected) 

Average Pile Size: Width: ____________ft. Length: ___________ft. Height: _____________ft.  

   (Front to Back)        (Side to Side)                  (Top to Bottom)  

Are there any special precautions to take on the property? ______________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Is there room to turn the chipper around?  Yes   No                                                            
Piles must be placed along road/driveway with adequate turnaround area of at least 40 feet. 

How would you like the chips disbursed?  Pile Chips   Broadcast Chips 

BY SIGNING BELOW, I AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS & CONDITIONS: 

1. I agree to permit the Nevada City Chipping Program chipping crew on my property.  
2. I agree that my piles are ready, and are stacked per Nevada City Chipping Program guidelines. Nevada 
City Chipping Program has final authority in determining if piles are compliant.  
3. I understand that any additional piles created once my form has been submitted may be rejected.  
4. I agree to comply with the Nevada City Chipping Program decision on where to place the chips, as 
safety is their number one concern.  
5. I understand that the Nevada City Chipping Program makes final scheduling decisions.  
6. I understand that the Nevada City Chipping Program is not obligated to perform this service, and are 
not liable for its failure to perform this service, or for the negligent performance of this service.  
7. I understand if on-site conditions prove to be a concern, Nevada City Chipping Program staff may 
refuse service.  
8. I understand the Nevada City Chipping Program does not chip on active marijuana grows, timber 
harvests or commercial properties.  
9. I understand that any remaining piles at a job taking longer than 4 hours to chip, will need to be 
resubmitted to the office for completion at a later date. 
 
SIGNATURE: __________________________________________________ DATE: _______________ 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
April 10, 2019                www.nevadacityca.gov 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:   Nevada City Traffic Calming Program 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and approve the Policy for the Implementation of Traffic 
Calming Measures in the City of Nevada City. 

 
CONTACT:   Bryan McAlister, City Engineer    

     Catrina Olson, City Manager 
 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
At the January 23, 2019 City Council meeting staff presented a sample traffic-calming 
program and informed City Council that staff and Council Member Minett would be holding 
a Traffic Calming Town Hall.   The Town Hall workshop was subsequently held on 
February 6, 2019.  City staff, Council Member Minett, residents and business owners in 
attendance at the workshop discussed concerns about speeding and traffic issues in 
certain residential areas of Nevada City and possible solutions.  A traffic calming process 
was reviewed which allows the public to notify staff of their areas of concern, with detail, 
so that staff can discern the appropriate solution, whether it be enforcement or 
engineering related. 

 
As authorized by City Council on February 13th, 2019, staff has prepared a Policy for the 
Implementation of Traffic Calming Measures in the City of Nevada City.   The Traffic 
Calming program includes a process and application for the public to inform staff of their 
traffic concerns, with details such as location / time of day.  This process will enable staff 
to access the information and determine if enforcement is the issue or if there is the 
necessity to implement traffic calming measures.     

 
The City of Nevada City Traffic Calming Program consists of a combination of measures 
to help reduce the negative effects of vehicle use, alter driver behavior and improve 
conditions for pedestrians and cyclists.  Implementation of traffic calming measures in the 
City of Nevada City shall be evaluated for appropriateness in the following order:  (1) 
education, (2) selective speed limit enforcement, (3) striping and signage, (4) streetscape 
improvements, (5) lane narrowing or diversion, and (6) speed bumps. Speed bumps will 
only be considered as a last resort measure, and only with the consent of the City of 
Nevada City Public Works, Fire and Police Departments. 
 
If adopted by City Council, the Program Policy and residential application / petition for 
traffic calming would be posted on the City’s website and made available at City Hall. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 

 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The Nevada City Traffic Calming Program will be 
administered by City staff on a time and equipment available basis.   Prior to 
implementation of physical street improvements related to traffic calming, an 
informational report will be provided to City Council which will include identification of a 
funding source for such improvements, unless such measures can be included in the 
current operating budget (ie. signage, enforcement). 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 Resolution for the Implementation of Traffic Calming Measures in the City of 

Nevada City 
 Policy for the Implementation of Traffic Calming Measures in the City of Nevada 

City 
 Residential Traffic Calming Application 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-XX 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE POLICY FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF 
TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES IN THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

WHEREAS, on February 13, 2019 the City Council authorized City staff to prepare 
a Traffic-Calming Program which shall include a process for the public to inform 
staff of their traffic concerns and implementation of various calming measures that 
can evaluated for appropriateness by City Fire, Police, Engineering and Public 
Works staff for each unique location or area of concern.; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the traffic calming program is to reduce the negative 
effects of vehicle use, alter driver behavior, and improve conditions for pedestrians 
and cyclists; and   

WHEREAS, The Nevada City Traffic Calming Program will be administered by City 
staff on a time and equipment available basis.   Prior to implementation of physical 
street improvements related to traffic calming, an informational report will be 
provided to City Council which will include identification of a funding source for 
such improvements, unless such measures can be included in the current 
operating budget (i.e. signage, enforcement). 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Nevada City, as follows: 

That the City shall adopt the Policy for the Implementation of Traffic 
Calming Measures in the City of Nevada City as set forth in Exhibit A.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council 
of the City of Nevada City held on the 10th day of April, 2019 by the 
following vote: 
 
AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSTAIN:   

ABSENT:   

 
      ________________________________ 
      David Parker, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 



Policy for the Implementation of Traffic Calming Measures in the 
City of Nevada City 
The City of Nevada City Traffic Calming Program consists of a combination of measures to help 
reduce the negative effects of vehicle use, alter driver behavior, and improve conditions for 
pedestrians and cyclists.  Implementation of traffic calming measures in the City of Nevada City 
shall be evaluated for appropriateness in the following order:  (1) education, (2) selective speed 
limit enforcement, (3) striping and signage, (4) streetscape improvements, (5) lane narrowing or 
diversion, and (6) speed bumps. Speed bumps will only be considered as a last resort measure, 
and only with the consent of the City of Nevada City Public Works, Fire and Police Departments. 

 

Traffic calming measures shall be implemented as follows: 

Item 1:  Education 

Education, problem identification and public information is the first step for traffic calming.  This 
will include conversations, meetings, e-mails, newsletters, and handouts regarding 
neighborhood traffic and pedestrian safety issues.   Resident complaints can be submitted to 
the City Police Department with specific details including time and location of traffic related 
concerns.   Upon receipt of any complaints about speeding traffic at a specific location, City staff 
will initiate problem identification with an emphasis on clearly identifying the perceived or actual 
severity of the problem.    

 

Item 2:  Selective Speed Limit Enforcement 

Selective speed limit enforcement will be initiated on a time and equipment available basis by 
the City Police Department upon receipt of any complaints about speeding traffic at a specific 
location.   Speed driver-feedback electronic signs may be used to notify drivers and collect data.   
Targeted Police enforcement, observation, and physical presence will be used to discourage 
speeding. 

 

Item 3:  Striping and Signage 

Street centerline striping will be evaluated for appropriateness in the event the desired results 
are not achieved with Items 1 and 2.   In some cases, an outside lane line (fog line) may be 
used to delineate and narrow the travel lane and to increase safety for pedestrian and cyclists. 

Installation of stop signs at any intersection in the City will be evaluated by staff upon notice that 
a special problem or unique condition may exist. The stop sign is a useful regulatory traffic 
control device that directs motorists to stop at all times before proceeding through an 
intersection. A fully justified and properly installed stop sign can facilitate traffic movement, 
effectively assign right-of-way, reduce vehicle delay and decrease accidents. A stop sign is not 
a cure-all and is not a substitute for other traffic control devices.  The Police Department shall 
approve of all stop sign locations. 
 



Item 4:  Streetscape Improvements 

Streetscape improvements will be implemented by City Engineering and Public Works 
Department and in accordance with City Council approval and budget considerations. 
Streetscape improvements will be used to enhance safety of the street for vehicles, pedestrians 
and cyclists.  This may include new curbing, crosswalks, sidewalks and on-street parking. 

 

Item 5:  Lane narrowing or Diversion 

Physical alterations to the street may affect traffic safety and shall be governed by the following 
procedure. A request for physical traffic calming measures shall be submitted to the City 
Engineer in the form of a petition signed by the residents of the street or street segment with an 
alleged speeding problem. Only one signature per residence shall be counted for purposes of 
determining the extent of support for the implementation of such measures. A minimum of two-
thirds of the residents on a street or street segment shall support the request for implementation 
of the physical measure. In addition, no less than three of four adjoining residences shall 
support the installation of the specific physical traffic calming measure at a specific location. 

Physical trafffic calming measures that may be considered include raised crosswalk; raised 
median islands; bulb-out curbs at intersections; neckdown or choker curb to reduce width; 
roundabouts; diversion alignment change or one-way segments and flashing warning lights. 

Prior to the implementation of any physical traffic calming measures, the City Engineer shall 
perform traffic studies to determine traffic volumes and speeds, and work with interested and 
concerned residents and City Departments (Public Works, Fire and Police) to determine which 
traffic calming measures are most appropriate and feasible to implement on specific streets. 
The effect on maintenance, commercial sized vehicles, emergency response times and snow 
plowing will be considered.   Street narrowing will be restricted to 12 foot minimum lanes to 
accommodate fire trucks and commercial vehicles.  The City Engineer shall provide an 
informational report to the City Council on recommended traffic calming measures prior to the 
implementation of such measures.  

 

Item 6:  Speed Bumps & Humps 

Speed bumps or speed humps will only be considered as a last resort measure, and only with 
the consent of the City of Nevada City Public Works, Fire and Police Departments.  Prior to the 
implementation of any speed bumps, the City Engineer will coordinate with Public Works, Fire 
and Police Department staff to determine potential effects on maintenance, emergency 
response times, impacts on commercial sized vehicles and snow plowing.   As with item 5, the 
City Engineer shall provide an informational report to the City Council for speed bumps prior to 
the implementation of this traffic calming measure.  

Speed bumps & humps are considered a physical alteration of the street and shall be supported 
with a written petition with a minimum of two-thirds of the residents on a street or street segment 
as further described in Item 5.  The location and type of speed bump or speed hump to be used 
will be evaluated for aesthetics, impact on residents, wear and tear on vehicles, discomfort for 
drivers and noise potential from braking / acceleration or bumping. 



  City of Nevada City 
317 Broad Street 

Nevada City, CA  95959 
Telephone: (530) 265-2496   

 
         

PETITION FOR TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES 
RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC CALMING APPLICATION 

 
Date: ________________________________                

Description of Problem (please include specific time and location): 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Petition  
We, the undersigned, herby petition the City of Nevada City to evaluate _____________________________(street) 
between _____________________________(street) and ______________________________(street) for traffic calming. 

The best day/time of the week to conduct the traffic study would be __________________________________. 
 

RESIDENT NAME 
(PLEASE PRINT) ADDRESS OF 1 HOUSEHOLD MEMBER PHONE NUMBER SIGNATURE 

 
CONTACT PERSON    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    
 
 
Only one signature per residence shall be counted for purposes of determining the extent of support for the 
implementation of such measures. A minimum of two-thirds of the residents on a street or street segment shall support 
the request for implementation of the physical measure. In addition, no less than three of four adjoining residences shall 
support the installation of the specific physical traffic calming measure at a specific location.  

When completed, please return to City of Nevada City Police Department 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
April 10, 2019        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: Sugarloaf Trail Progress Update 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file. 
 
CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 

Bryan McAlister, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
At the May 10, 2017 meeting, Council approved a conceptual trail alignment for the Sugarloaf 
Trail as proposed by the Bear Yuba Land Trust.  Since the conceptual approval, staff and the 
Land Trust have worked with consultants to prepare several special studies that will inform 
preparation of an initial study pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Staff 
has set up a webpage on the City website that provides links to completed studies, including the 
following reports: 1) Geotechnical Engineering Feasibility Study, 2) Cultural Resource Survey, 
and 3) a Biological Inventory. The Sugarloaf Trail webpage can be found at: 
https://www.nevadacityca.gov/pview.aspx?id=20862&catid=564 
 
The webpage also contains an updated project description and the most recent trail 
construction plans as prepared by City Engineer, Bryan McAlister. At the close of the deadline 
for comments from the “notice of distribution and request for agency comment,” on January 18, 
2019, staff began work on the preparation of the environmental document pursuant to CEQA.  
 
NEXT STEPS:  
Staff received a requested tribal notification list from the Native American Heritage Commission 
(NAHC), on March 14, 2019, and results from the records search of the California Historical 
Resources Information System (CHRIS) from the North Central Information Center (NCIC), on 
April 3, 2019. Information received from NCIC has been included in the consultation notification 
letters sent to the tribal contacts on April 5, 2019, as well as a link to the Cultural Resource 
Report prepared for the project. State law provides tribal contacts a minimum of 30-days to 
request consultation on the project. The 30-day consultation period will need to close in order to 
complete the Tribal Consultation, section of the environmental document. If a valid consultation 
request is made, this could extend the consultation period for another 60-days.  
 
The City Engineer and City Planner have been working with biologist, Carolyn Chainey-Davis 
and reviewing options for a culvert as opposed to a bridge crossing the ephemeral drainage 
course within the Caltrans right-of-way.  Preliminary correspondence between the City Engineer 
and Caltrans have indicated that a culvert will be a preferable option for the City and we have 
asked the biologist to revise her report. The updated report will be needed in order to complete 
the Biological and the Hydrology sections of the environmental document and to support the 
environmental permit applications to US Army Corp., State Water Resources Control Board and 
State Dept. of Fish and Wildlife. 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
https://www.nevadacityca.gov/pview.aspx?id=20862&catid=564


Sugarloaf Trail Update 
4/10/2019 
 
The Bear Yuba Land Trust has been working with officials at Nevada County to secure an 
agreement for use of the Government Center parking lot by trail users. To date, I have not 
received a copy of the formal agreement. This document will be needed in order to complete the 
Traffic/Transportation section of the environmental document.  
 
The City is in contract with retired City Planner, Cindy Siegfried to help with several sections of 
the environmental document.  To date, staff has completed drafts for six of the 19 sections of 
the environmental report. 
 
Trail improvements also require an encroachment permit from the CA Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) for the portion of the trail that is within State right-of-way.  City staff 
has been coordinating with Caltrans and is in the process of resubmitting the application to 
Caltrans for review and approval.    Caltrans is the regulatory approving agency for this portion 
of the trail. 
 
FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The trail implementation process is funded by volunteers of the 
Bear Yuba Land Trust.   City staff time is required for processing a formal trail proposal, preparing 
the CEQA document, preparing the construction drawings and procuring the necessary State 
and Federal permits. The City will need to pay for the updated biologist report (anticipated to be 
approx. $2,000) and the NCIC fee of $150 and environmental permit fees (anticipated to be 
approx. $3,500).  
 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL City of Nevada City 
317 Broad Street 
Nevada City, CA 95959 

April 10, 2019 www.nevadacityca.gov 

TITLE:  AMENDED APPLICATION: Elevation 2477 – Cannabis 
Dispensary Business, Amended to Add a Delivery Component at 569 Searls 
Avenue, Suite C 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the amended application as presented to authorize a 
delivery component for Elevation 2477, as outlined in their amendment proposal,  
subject to the previously approved Conditions of Approval as amended, attached, 
making the findings a & b. 

a) As presented and conditioned, there is no reasonable argument that approval of 
the amended application is likely to be detrimental to the City, taking into 
account any health, safety and welfare impacts on the community.

b) Finding that the amended application is consistent with Chapter 9.22 of the 
Nevada City Municipal Code. 

CONTACT:   Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
    Catrina Olson, Interim City Manager 

BACKGROUND:
At the November 15, 2017 City Council Meeting, “Elevation 2477” was selected, out 
of the three applicants, to operate a medical cannabis dispensary at 569 
Searls Avenue by a majority vote of the City Council. At the January 9, 
2019 City Council Meeting, the business amended their application to 
allow adult-use cannabis sales along with medical sales. 
Chapter 9.22.130 allows for a dispensary business to operate a delivery 
component as a part of their operation. However, the application as submitted in 
2017 did not include any information on a delivery business so that activity was 
not authorized as part of their overall operation. The applicant has since 
determined that delivery sales will strengthen their business.    

DISCUSSION: 
Attached is the applicant’s redacted application with the amendment proposal to 
include delivery activity to the dispensary operation. Notification and an invitation 
to review and comment on the amended application was distributed on March 10, 
2019 to the Fire Chief, the Police Chief, the City Attorney, the City Engineer, the City 
Manager, the Environmental Health Department, the Building Department and 
to Council Members. A redacted version of the application, with the 
inserted delivery activity proposal, is attached to the staff report. 
 
Staff review resulted in some concern with the amended proposal due to the cash-
only nature of the delivery activity. The applicant was asked to respond to this 
concern and provide a time line for when they expect to be able to provide 
credit card sales. The applicant’s response is included as an addendum to the 
amendment material, attached. There are currently significant constraints with 
using traditional banking and credit card transactions for cannabis businesses, as 
discussed in the response.  Staff is therefore is recommending that a condition be 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


be included that prohibits cash transactions only at such time that credit card 
transactions become a viable option. The following are recommended additions 
to the conditions of approval pursuant to Section 9.22.130 of the City Municipal Code 
and to address staff concerns regarding cash-sales: 

• The owner, operator and delivery personnel shall comply with all applicable state 
law requirements;

• The delivery personnel must be an employee of the cannabis dispensary;

• Before dispensing any products to persons requesting delivery, the delivery 
personnel must verify that the requestor is of legal age to possess cannabis.

• At such time that credit-card sales for delivered dispensary products is available, 
all delivery sales shall be credit card-based and no cash sales shall be permitted. 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: The amendment may be found exempt 
pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 (existing facilities) because the building 
is already existing and the proposed  delivery  activity, as an extension of the 
dispensary business, is consistent with the principal permitted uses allowed in the Light 
Industrial Zoning District pursuant to Section 17.48.020, and there is no expansion of use  
beyond what is already considered a  permitted use.  

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Delivery sales may generate additional tax revenue 
for the City 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Elevation 2477 Application amended with the proposed  delivery activity
 Draft Authorization Letter with Amended Conditions of Approval



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-1



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-2



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-3



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-4



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-5



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-6



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-7



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-8



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-9



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-10



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-11



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-12



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-13



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-14



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-15



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-16



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-17



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-18



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-19



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-20



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-21



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-22



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-23



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-24



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-25



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-26



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-27



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-28



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-29



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-30



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-31



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-32



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-33



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-34



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-35



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-36



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-37



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-38



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-39



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-40



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-41



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-42



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-43



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-44



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-45



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-46



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-47



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-48



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-49



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-50



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-51



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-52



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-53



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-54



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-55



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-56



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-57



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-58



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-59



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-60



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-61



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-62



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-63



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-64



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-65



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-66



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-67



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-68



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-69



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-70



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-71



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-72



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-73



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-74



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-75



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-76



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-77



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-78



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-79



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-80



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-81



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-82



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-83



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-84



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-85



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-86



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-87



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-88



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-89



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-90



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-91



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-92



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-93



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-94



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-95



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-96



Original Submittal Material
Ele.D-97













                                

             City of Nevada City 

 
City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

 

 
 
 
April 22, 2019 
 
 
Daniel Bachelor 
‘Elevation 2477’ 
11467 Vinlee Place 
Grass Valley, CA 95949 
 
 
Subject:  Nevada City Cannabis Business Authorization for ‘Elevation 2477’ at 569 Searls 

Avenue, Suite C 
 

Dear Mr. Bachelor: 
 
At their April 10, 2019 meeting, the City Council of the City of Nevada City voted to approve your 
amended application to add delivery activity to your cannabis dispensary operation at 569 Searls 
Avenue.  This authorization shall effectively amend your previously issued permit issued to you, 
valid  for a term of one year from the date of original permit issuance, August 14, 2019, subject to 
the amended Conditions of Approval:  
 

• Provide proof of California State Licensing that verifies the license type issued. 
 

• Prior to commencing operations, you are required to complete all tenant improvements as 
detailed in your application. A cannabis business shall be subject to a mandatory building 
inspection, and must obtain all required permits and approvals which would otherwise be 
required for any business of the same size and intensity operating in that zone. This includes 
but is not limited to obtaining any required building permit(s), fire department approvals, 
Health Department approvals and other zoning and land use permit(s) and approvals. 
 

• Provide evidence of the right to occupy and to use the property for purposes of a cannabis 
dispensary. As a condition precedent to the City's issuance of a cannabis business permit 
pursuant to this Chapter, any person intending to open and to operate a commercial cannabis 
business shall provide sufficient evidence of the legal right to occupy and to use the 
proposed location.  
 

• They must execute an agreement, in a form approved by the city attorney, agreeing to 
indemnify, defend (at applicant's sole cost and expense), and hold the City of Nevada City, 
and its officers, officials, employees, representatives, and agents, harmless, from any and all 
claims, losses, damages, injuries, liabilities or losses which arise out of, or which are in any 
way related to, the City's issuance of the commercial cannabis business permit, the City's 
decision to approve the operation of the commercial cannabis business or activity, to process 



City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

used by the City in making its decision, or the alleged violation of any federal, state or local 
laws by the commercial cannabis business or any of its officers, employees or agents. 

 
• Provide proof of liability insurance and liability agreement. You are required to maintain 

insurance at coverage limits, and with conditions thereon determined necessary and 
appropriate from time to time by the city attorney. 

 
• Provide the name, telephone number, and email address of a community relations contact to 

whom notice of problems associated with the commercial cannabis dispensary can be provided. 
Each commercial cannabis dispensary shall also provide the above information to all 
businesses and residences located within one hundred (100) feet of the commercial cannabis 
dispensary property and shall provide opportunity for those businesses and residents within 
one hundred (100) feet to visit and to tour the commercial cannabis dispensary at least once on 
a mutually convenient date and time. Any additional request shall be at the sole discretion of 
the dispensary operator.  

• During the first year of operation pursuant to Section 9.22.140 of the City Municipal Code, the 
owner, manager, and community relations representative from the commercial cannabis 
dispensary holding a permit shall attend a quarterly meeting with the city manager or his/her 
designee(s) to discuss costs, benefits, and other community issues arising as a result of 
issuance of a commercial cannabis dispensary permit. After the first year of operation, the 
owner, manager, and community relations representative from the commercial cannabis 
dispensary shall meet with the city manager or his/her designee(s) when and as requested by 
the city manager or his/her designee(s).  

• Develop a public education plan pursuant to Section 9.22.080 of the City Municipal Code. The 
commercial cannabis dispensary to which a permit is issued pursuant to this chapter shall 
develop and make available to youth organizations and educational institutions a public 
education plan that outlines the risks of youth abuse of cannabis, and that identifies resources 
available to youth related to drugs and drug addiction. 

• Identify a designated security representative/liaison to the City of Nevada City, who shall be 
reasonably available to meet with the City Nevada City or his/her designee regarding any 
security related measures or and operational issues. 

• The owner, operator, and delivery personnel shall comply with all applicable state law 
requirements; 

• The delivery personnel must be an employee of the cannabis dispensary; 

• Before dispensing any products to persons requesting delivery, the delivery personnel must 
verify that the requestor is of legal age to possess cannabis. 

• At such time that credit-card sales for delivered dispensary products is available, all delivery 
sales shall be credit card-based and no cash sales shall be permitted 

 



City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

Please note that under United States Law, the operation of a cannabis business, regardless of 
whether it is for commercial or recreational purposes, is illegal and may be subject to criminal 
prosecution and civil enforcement actions. Property involved in such operations has been subject to 
seizure by and forfeiture to the United States.  
 
Operation of your business may not commence until the above requirements are satisfied to the 
satisfaction of Nevada City staff. Issuance a Nevada City Business License and issuance of a 
commercial cannabis business permit shall not occur until all of the above requirements have 
been completed. Please note that the City has the right to revoke a permit issued for a commercial 
cannabis business at any time should any disqualifying information regarding the application or its 
principals be presented to the City. Finally, please be aware that sixty days prior to the expiration of 
your permit (twelve months from permit issuance), you must apply for renewal of your business 
permit in order to avoid a lapse in operation.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Amy Wolfson 
City Planner 
(530) 265-2496 x130  
 
CC:  Catrina Olson, Interim City Manager 
 Harold DeGraw, City Attorney  



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
April 10, 2019        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
TITLE:  Citywide Projects, Capital and Programs Listing Potentially Eligible for Grant 
Funding 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Provide staff direction for next steps on how to proceed. 

 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 
                     Loree’ McCay, Administrative Services Manager 

 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
On January 28, 2019, the City Council, Planning Commission and executive staff held a planning 
retreat to discuss and update three-year goals and six-month strategic objectives to guide the 
organization.  
 
One of the three-year goals is to improve and maintain fiscal stability and sustainability.  One of 
the six-month objectives for this goal is to present to City Council for action projects, that would 
qualify for grant funding, and who would be responsible for the grant applications.  The City 
Manager, Catrina Olson and Administrative Services Manager, Loree’ McCay worked with all 
department heads to compile a listing of citywide projects, capital and programs. 
 
The attached listing details all of the identified needs and desires of each department with 
estimated costs and timeframes for possible implementation.  Not all have identified grant 
funding.  Identifying grant funding currently would fall under the responsibility of the Department 
Head or his/her designee (which may be difficult given workload and lack of grant writing 
experience).  Staff is currently looking for City Council direction to proceed in setting the priority 
and necessity of each of the items listed and identifying the City Manager and Administrative 
Services Manager as the leads in actively seeking citywide funding for the listed projects, capital 
and programs.  Ultimately, it would be the desire of staff to identify a part-time consulting grant 
writer to assist in locating funding and writing grants. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  None. 

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  $22.4 million in identified projects. 

 
ATTACHMENT:    

 Citywide Projects, Capital and Programs Listing 
 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


City of Nevada City

Possible City Projects Funded by Grants

Dept Description Estimated Cost Potential Source fo funds Timeline

ADMIN New Operating System Software 100,000.00$               1‐3 YRS

ADMIN Computer Replacement 20,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

ADMIN Conversion to Paperless and Cloud Storage and backup unknown 1‐3 YRS

ADMIN Online Billing and payment system unknown 1‐3 YRS

ADMIN Citywide (including off site) Phone System Upgrade 50,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

COUNCIL Siren System and Installation 50,000.00$                 OES, FEMA 1‐3 YRS

COUNCIL Council Chambers Upgrade of Equipment  60,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

WATER Updated Water Meters 150,000.00$               1‐3 YRS

DPW Street Sweeper 250,000.00$               1‐3 YRS

DPW Mini excavator 60,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

DPW Vehicle Trailer 15,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

DPW Rebuild Mill Building in Corp Yard 1,500,000.00$           1‐3 YRS

WATER Add Isolation Valves for the Water System 100,000.00$               1‐3 YRS

DPW New Truck for DPW 50,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

DPW Snow Plow for Truck #35 6,000.00$                   1‐3 YRS

DPW Remodel Pool Bathrooms 200,000.00$               1‐3 YRS

FIRE Replacement of Self‐Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) 100,000.00$               AFG Current Application

FIRE Continuation of Tree Mortality Grant 200,000.00$               1‐3 YRS

FIRE New Turnout Gear 20,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

FIRE Engine Equipment 15,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

FIRE New pickup Truck 45,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Bathroom (CDBG) 47,000.00$                 CDBG Current

PARKS & REC Pioneer Park Improvements 3,000,000.00$           Proposition 68 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Renovation of Seaman’s Lodge 1,000,000.00$           Proposition 68 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Trail around Pioneer Park lower field 30,000.00$                 Proposition 68 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Slide or other feature at the swimming pool 30,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Carriage House – either improvements or move carriages to 

Transportation Museum and convert this area to something else.

unknown 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC 425 Nimrod St. – make a plan for this space unknown 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Renovate decorative fountain 10,000.00$                 Proposition 68 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Lights at Tennis Courts 50,000.00$                 Proposition 68 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Create additional parking at Pioneer Park 60,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Children’s play area in/near Picnic‐Right 20,000.00$                 Proposition 68 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Stairs/improve walkway behind mower shed 30,000.00$                 Proposition 68 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Improve drainage of lower field 200,000.00$               Proposition 68 1‐3 YRS

DPW Firehouse #2 – make a plan for how this space should be used, 

then find funding for that renovation

unknown 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Fire Clearing projects on all City properties and Open Space 

parcels

600,000.00$               1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Old Airport Master Plan/development 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Maybert Bridge/Trail/Parking 1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Sugarloaf Mtn. Trail 300,000.00$               1‐3 YRS

PARKS & REC Truck for Recreation Dept. 50,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

PLANNING General Plan 500,000.00$               SB2 1‐3 YRS

PLANNING Housing Element 35,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

POLICE Investigator  Police Officer ‐ FTE 100,000.00$               1‐3 YRS

POLICE Assistance with enforcement/education of tobacco use in 

Historical District

1‐3 YRS

POLICE New Generator for backup and emergencies 15,000.00$                 OES 1‐3 YRS

POLICE New laptops and Desktop Computers 60,000.00$                 Technology Grant 1‐3 YRS

POLICE Replacement of Patrol Rifles 15,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

POLICE PD Garage improvements ‐ Repairs and Improvements 25,000.00$                 1‐3 YRS

POLICE Relocation of Police Department  Unknown 1‐3 YRS

POLICE Code Compliance Officer 100,000.00$               1‐3 YRS

SEWER Headworks Automated Grit Removal 172,000.00$               EPA 1‐3 YRS

SEWER Clarifier Upgrade 400,000.00$               EPA 1‐3 YRS

SEWER Disk Filter System Upgrade 200,000.00$               EPA 1‐3 YRS

SEWER Generator  214,000.00$               EPA 1‐3 YRS

SEWER SCADA Upgrades 125,000.00$               EPA 1‐3 YRS

SEWER Sewer mainline Replacement 1,000,000.00$           EPA‐Water Board 1‐3 YRS

STREETS Improve Clark Street ‐ Parking Lot 75,000.00$                 1 YR

STREETS Curb Cuts (CDBG) 139,000.00$               CDBG Current

STREETS Searls Sidewalk (CMAQ) 93,000.00$                 CMAQ Current

STREETS Boulder Sidewalk (CMAQ) 77,000.00$                 CMAQ Current

STREETS Commercial Street (SB1) 200,000.00$               SB1 Current

STREETS Broad Street Y (PGE‐Rule20A) 600,000.00$               PGE‐Rule 20A Current

STREETS Nevada Street Bridge (Highway Bridge Program) 3,300,000.00$           Highway Bridge Program Current

STREETS Parking Structure 4,000,000.00$           1‐3 YRS

STREETS Sidewalk and Bike Path – Zion/ Sacramento  650,000.00$               ATP 1‐3 YRS

WATER Shade Structure for Floc Basin 146,000.00$               EPA 1‐3 YRS

WATER Clearwell for Chlorine Contact 770,000.00$               EPA 1‐3 YRS

WATER SCADA system (new) 140,000.00$               EPA 1‐3 YRS

WATER Purchase land for Water Plant from BLM 500,000.00$               Water Resources 1‐3 YRS

WATER Water mainline Replacement  300,000.00$               EPA‐Water Board 1‐3 YRS

22,369,000.00$        


	1 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING - 04.10.19
	WEDNESDAY, APRIL 10, 2019
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	3A-1 SR 4.10.19 Accounts Payable - March 2019
	3A-2 Accounts Payable Activity Report-March 2019
	3B-1 SR 4.10.19  Side Letter Misc. MOU
	3B-2 Side letter-MISC Employees WWTP Workers
	City of Nevada City
	side letter No. 1 to Memorandum of Understanding

	3C-1 SR 4.10.19 Award Contract for Seamans Lodge Floor Refinish
	3C-2 Reso 2019-XX Seamans Lodge Floor Refinish
	3C-3 contract for Seamans Lodge Floor Refinish
	3D-1 SR 4.10.19 Award Contract for sidewalk frontage at 211 Broad Street (National Hotel) Sidewalk
	3D-2 Reso 2019-XX Award Contract for 211 Broad St. (National Hotel) Sidewalk
	3D-3 contract for 211 Broad St - National Hotel - Sidewalk
	18-115 National Hotel Grading Plans-Bid Set.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Title Sheet

	2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Plan View Broad Street


	3.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Notes and Details




	3E-1 sales tax updates-2018-4
	4A-1 Minutes - March 27, 2019
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	4.     APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES:

	5A-1 SR 4.10.19 Residential Chipping Program
	5A-2 NEVADA CITY RESIDENTIAL CHIPPING PROGRAM GUIDELINES
	5A-3 NEVADA CITY RESIDENTIAL CHIPPING PROGRAM APPLICATION
	7A-1 SR 4.10.19 Traffic Calming Program
	7A-2 Reso - 2019-XX Traffic Calming Policy
	7A-3 Policy for the Implementation of Traffic Calming Measures in the City of Nevada City
	Policy for the Implementation of Traffic Calming Measures in the City of Nevada City

	7A-4 residential traffic calming application
	7B-1 SR 4.10.19 Sugarloaf Trail Update
	UBACKGROUND/DISCUSSIONU:
	At the May 10, 2017 meeting, Council approved a conceptual trail alignment for the Sugarloaf Trail as proposed by the Bear Yuba Land Trust.  Since the conceptual approval, staff and the Land Trust have worked with consultants to prepare several specia...
	The webpage also contains an updated project description and the most recent trail construction plans as prepared by City Engineer, Bryan McAlister. At the close of the deadline for comments from the “notice of distribution and request for agency comm...

	8A-1 SR 4.10.19 Delivery Amendment
	8A-2 Delivery ATT1 Public Version- Elevation with Deliver-REDACTED
	8A-3 Delivery ATT2 Authorization-Amended - Elevation 2477
	8B-1 SR 4.10.19 Citywide Projects - Grant Funding
	8B-2 Potential Grant Funded Projects - by Dept



